
1 | P a g e  
The Village of Caledonia complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). All meetings are wheelchair accessible.  

Contact the Village Clerk for special accommodations at 262-835-6414. 

 
  

   
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, May 27, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 
Caledonia Village Hall - 5043 Chester Lane 

Caledonia, WI 53402 
1. Meeting called to order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
4. Approval of Minutes: Village Board – May 13, 2024 

 
5. Public Comment – Provides a two-minute opportunity for citizens to voice opinions to the Village 

Board.  The Village Board cannot respond as this may conflict with open meeting requirements. 
 
6. Ordinances and Resolutions 

A. Resolution 2025-043 – Authorizing the Village of Caledonia to Enter Into a Contract with Racine 
County Convention and Visitors Bureau (DBA Visit Racine County) for Tourism Promotion and 
Development Services (CoW 5/13, 7-0) 

B. Resolution 2025-044 – Approving the Explosives and Blasting Permit Renewal for the Existing 
Quarry at 1501 3 Mile Road (CoW 5/13, 7-0) 

C. Resolution 2025-045 – Approving a Building, Site, and Operation Plan to Construct a ±6,713 
Square Foot Industrial Building on the Parcel Located North of 4005 Quick Drive; RA Domanik 
Investments LLC, Owner; Nathan Remitz, Applicant (Plan 5/19, 4-0) 

D. Resolution 2025-046 – Approving a Building, Site, and Operation Plan to Construct a ±960 Square-
Foot Expansion of the Ground Equipment Area for the Operation of an Existing  (Plan 5/19, 4-0) 
Telecommunications Tower Located at 6922 Nicholson Road, Village of Caledonia; Daniel Adams, 
Applicant, Village of Caledonia, Owner (Plan 5/19, 4-0) 

E. Resolution 2025-047 – Approving the Final Condominium Plat for StorageShopUSA Commercial 
Condominiums Located at 7930 E. Frontage Road (Plan 5/19, 4-0) 

F. Resolution 2025-048 – Approving a Temporary Use for a 30' X 60' Canopy Tent for Sales of 
Fireworks and a 8’ X 40’ Storage Container for Firework Storage from June 19 through July 6, 
2024; Located at 5111 Douglas Avenue, Village of Caledonia; Dustin Hein, Applicant, Greentree 
Station LLC, Owner (Plan 5/19, 4-0) 
 

7. New Business 
A. Approval of A/P Checks 
B. St. Rita’s Festival License 

 
8. Adjournment 



 

Village Board Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3 

 

Village Board Meeting Minutes 
May 13, 2025 

  
1 - Order 

President Weatherston called the Village Board meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. at the Caledonia 
Village Hall. 
 

2 - Pledge of Allegiance 
President Weatherston led the board in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 
3 - Roll Call 
PRESENT:  7 – President Weatherston, Trustee McManus, Trustee Wishau, Trustee Stillman, 

Trustee Martin, Trustee Lambrecht, and Trustee Pierce 
 
EXCUSED:  0  
 
STAFF: Administrator Todd Willis, Village Attorney Tim Pruitt, Public Services Director 

Tony Bunkelman, Village Engineer Ryan Schmidt, Development Director Peter 
Wagner, Police Chief Chris Botsch, Deputy Clerk Norgie Metzinger, and Clerk 
Jennifer Bass 

 
4 – Approval of Minutes 

Motion by Trustee Lambrecht to approve the minutes of the April 22, 2025 Village Board 
meeting as amended, seconded by Trustee Pierce. The motion carried 7-0.  

 
5 – Public Comment 

The following people appeared to speak before the Village Board: 
None 
 

6 – Ordinances and Resolutions 
A. Ordinance 2025-07 – Adopting an Amendment to the Multi-Jurisdictional Comprehensive 

Plan for Racine County: 2035 as it Pertains to the Village of Caledonia under Section 13-2-1 
of the Village’s Code of Ordinances by Creating Section 13-2-2(X) Adding an Amendment to 
the Village’s Comprehensive Plan and Affecting the Parcel Located at 4 Mile Road, Parcel Id 
No. 104-04-23-30-001-000, Village of Caledonia; Containing 17.8 Acres, More or Less; from 
Office Park to High Density Residential; Rita Lui and Carol Thelen, Owners (Plan 4/28, 6-0) 
 
Motion by Trustee Pierce to approve the ordinance 2025-07, seconded by Trustee Martin. 
Motion carried 7-0. 
 

B. Ordinance 2025-08 – To Amend Zoning Districts of the Zoning Map Adopted under Section 
16-2-3 of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Caledonia Approving a Request to Rezone 
a ±17.8-Acre Parcel from R-4, Single Family Residential District and M-1, Light 
Manufacturing District to RM-1, Multi Family Residential District for the Parcel Located on 
the Southeast Corner of 4 Mile Road and North Green Bay Road, Parcel Id No. 104-04-23-
30-001-000, Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI., Rita Lui and Carol Thelen, Owners 
(Plan 4/28, 6-0) 

 



 

Village Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 

 

Motion by Trustee Martin to approve the ordinance, seconded by Trustee Pierce. Motion 
carried 7-0. 
 

C. Resolution 2025-035 – Approving Certified Survey Map #_______; – Parcel Id 104-04-23-
30-001-000 Located in the NE ¼ of Section 30, T4N, R23E, Village of Caledonia, Racine 
County, WI (Plan 4/28, 6-0) 

 
Motion by Trustee Martin to approve the resolution, seconded by Trustee Stillman. Motion 
carried 7-0. 

 
D. Resolution 2025-036 – Approving a Concept Plan for StorageShopUSA Commercial 

Condominiums, Approving the Net Density of 7.33 Units Per Acre, Approving Waivers to 
Ordinance Sec. 14-3-4(C)(4)(B)(II), 14-3-5(B), and Authorizing the Combination of the 
Preliminary and Final Plat Stage for Review at 7930 E. Frontage Road (Plan 4/28, 6-0) 

 
Motion by Trustee Pierce to approve the resolution, seconded by Trustee Martin. Motion 
carried 7-0. 

 
E. Resolution 2025-037 – Authorizing the Village of Caledonia to Enter into a Professional 

Services Contract with Pinnacle Engineering Group for the South Hills Commerce Center – 
Golf and Frontage Road Improvements in Tax Incremental District No. 4  
 
Motion by Trustee Pierce to approve the resolution, seconded by Trustee McManus. Motion 
carried 7-0. 
 

F. Resolution 2025-038 – Approving Application Submission for a COPS Hiring Grant for a 
School Resource Officer (SRO) Position and Explore Additional Funding Options (CoW 
4/22/2025) 
 
Motion by Trustee McManus to approve the resolution, seconded by Trustee Stillman. 
Motion carried 7-0. 
 

G. Resolution 2025-039 – Approving a Budget Amendment to Reallocate Previously Approved 
Capital Funds from a Tractor to a Swing Coupler and Grapple Bucket (CoW 4/22/2025) 
 
Motion by Trustee Stillman to approve the resolution, seconded by Trustee Martin. Motion 
carried 7-0. 
 

H. Resolution 2025-040 – Authorizing the Village of Caledonia to Waive Fees Regarding the 
Racine County 911 Radio System Upgrade Project  
 
Motion by Trustee Martin to approve the resolution, seconded by Trustee Stillman. Motion 
carried 7-0. 
 

I. Resolution 2025-041 – Authorizing the Village of Caledonia to Execute a Contract for a 
Ditch Cleaning Project with Raymond School District #14 
 
Motion by Trustee Wishau to approve the resolution, seconded by Trustee McManus. 
Motion carried 7-0. 



 

Village Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 

 

 
7 – New Business 

A. Approval of A/P Checks 
 
Motion by Trustee Wishau to approve the A/P checks, seconded by Trustee McManus.  
Motion carried 7-0. 
 

B. Approval of US Bank Credit Card List  
 
Motion by Trustee Wishau to approve the US Bank List, seconded by Trustee Martin.  
Motion carried 7-0. 

 
8 – Closed Session 

A. The Village Board will take up a motion to go into CLOSED SESSION, pursuant to s. 
19.85(1)(g),Wis. Stat., “Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved”, specifically: Claim filed by Michelle 
Harden. 
 
Motion by Trustee Stillman to go into closed session, seconded by Trustee McManus Motion 
carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes: 7 –  Weatherston, Lambrecht, Martin, McManus, Wishau, Pierce, and Stillman 
Nays:  0 
 

B. The Village Board reserves the right to go back into OPEN SESSION, and possibly take 
action on the items discussed during the closed session and to move to the remaining items 
on the agenda. 
 
Motion by Trustee Pierce to go back into open session, seconded by Trustee Stillman. 
Motion carried 7-0. 
 

C. Resolution 2025-034 – Disallowing the Claim of Michelle Harden, Dated April 21, 2025 and 
Received by the Village on April 24, 2025, with an Alleged Incident Date of September 3, 
2024 
 
Motion by Trustee Martin to approve the resolution, seconded by Trustee Pierce. Motion 
carried 7-0. 
 

9 – Adjournment 
President Weatherston adjourned the meeting at 6:30 p.m. 

  
Respectfully submitted: 
Jennifer Bass 
Village Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-043 
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH RACINE COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU (DBA VISIT 

RACINE COUNTY) FOR TOURISM PROMOTION AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  

The Village Board for the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI do resolve as follows: 

WHEREAS, the Village of Caledonia has contracted with Racine County Convention and 
Visitors Bureau, Inc. (DBA Visit Racine County) for tourism services for many years and Racine County 
Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. has served as Racine County’s Visitors and Convention Bureau; and  

WHEREAS, in 2023, the Village of Caledonia terminated their contractual relationship with Racine 
County Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. as the contract at the time was outdated and not reflective of the 
current relationship; and  

WHEREAS, Racine County Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. was experiencing significant 
changes in structure and form, the Village of Caledonia decided to not form a new contract immediately upon 
termination of the old contract; and  

WHEREAS, contracting with Racine County Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. will allow the 
Village of Caledonia to have representation on the Racine County Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. 
board that will participate in how the organization moves forward in providing tourism and marketing 
services to the County members in the future, and  

WHEREAS, Racine County Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. has proposed a long-term contract 
that would allow the Village of Caledonia participation in the Racine County Convention and Visitors Bureau, 
Inc. board and the Village of Caledonia would like to contract with Real Racine for a term beginning in January 
1, 2025 through January 1, 2028.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Caledonia Village Board that a contract between 
the Village of Caledonia and the Racine County Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. for tourism services for 
January 1, 2025 through January 1, 2028 as set forth in Exhibit A which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein, for 70% of room tax revenue is authorized and approved and the Village President and Village Clerk 
are authorized to execute said contract. 

Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this _____ day of May, 
2025. 

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 

By:  
Thomas Weatherston 
Village President 

Attest: 
Jennifer Bass 
Village Clerk 



1 00428635-1 - 14640  

AGREEMENT FOR TOURISM PROMOTION 
AND TOURISM DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Racine County Convention 

and Visitors Bureau, Inc. (d/b/a Visit Racine County), a Wisconsin non-stock 
corporation (“Visit Racine County”), and the Village of Caledonia, a Wisconsin 
municipal corporation (the “Municipality”). This Agreement will be in effect starting 
January 1, 2025 through January 1, 2028. 

R E C I T A L S: 
 

A. The Municipality has implemented a room tax under section 66.0615 of 
the Wisconsin statutes. 

B. Section 66.0615 of the Wisconsin statutes requires a municipality 
collecting a room tax to forward at least 70% of the room tax collected by it to a 
tourism entity or a tourism commission to be spent on tourism promotion and 
tourism development (except where grandfathering allows the municipality to 
forward a lesser amount). 

C. Visit Racine County is a non-profit convention and visitors bureau 
engaged in tourism promotion and tourism development within Racine County, 
Wisconsin with a mission to promote and advocate for the development of Racine 
County, Wisconsin as an attractive visitor destination to enhance the local economy. 

 
D. The parties wish to enter into an agreement whereby the Municipality 

will forward 80% of the room tax collected by the Municipality to Visit Racine County 
to be used by Visit Racine County for tourism promotion and tourism development 
within the Municipality. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed as follows: 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference as 
though set forth in their entirety. 

2. Room Tax. The Municipality will forward 80% of the room tax collected 
by it to Visit Racine County in the manner required by section 66.0615 of the 
Wisconsin statutes to be spent by Visit Racine County on tourism promotion and 
tourism development. The room tax required to be forwarded by the Municipality to 
Visit Racine County hereunder shall be remitted to Visit Racine County monthly. In 
the case of any change in the percentage of room tax collections the Municipality is 
required to forward to a tourism entity or commission under section 66.0615 of the 
Wisconsin statutes, whether due to a change in the law or a change in 
circumstances, then: 



2 00428635-1 - 14640  

(a) in the event the percentage the Municipality is required to forward 
to a tourism entity or commission increases above the percentage stated in this 
section, the percentage described in this section shall be automatically increased to 
match the percentage of room tax collections the Municipality is required to forward 
to a tourism entity or commission under the then current version of the law as of 
the effective date of the change under the law, and 

 
(b) in the event the percentage the Municipality is required to forward 

to a tourism entity or commission decreases below the percentage stated in this 
section, the percentage described in this section may be decreased, upon written 
notice by the Municipality to Visit Racine County, to the lower percentage required 
under the then current version of the law (or a greater amount acceptable to the 
Municipality) with such change taking effect as of the date three (3) months after 
notice is given. Notwithstanding the above, if the decrease in the amount to be 
forwarded is mandatory, then the decrease shall be effective as the effective date of 
the change under the law. The notice from the Municipality shall include an 
explanation as to the reason for the decrease. 

 
3. Visit Racine County Services. In exchange for the Municipality 

forwarding room tax as required by section 2 above, Visit Racine County agrees to 
serve as the tourism entity for the Municipality under section 66.0615 of the 
Wisconsin statutes and to spend such room tax on tourism promotion and tourism 
development likely to result in paid overnight stays in the Municipality, including, 
without limitation, to: 

 
(a) Undertake marketing projects, including advertising media buys, 

creation and distribution of printed or electronic promotional tourist materials, and 
efforts to recruit conventions, sporting events, or motorcoach groups to the greater 
Racine County area, including, to the Municipality. 

 
(b) Provide transient informational services. 

 
(c) Promote and market events and attractions within the 

Municipality through the Municipality’s normal marketing and advertising channels. 

(d) Generally promote and advocate for greater Racine County, 
including the Municipality, as an attractive destination for recreational, business, or 
educational purposes. 

(e) Attract events to the greater Racine County area that are likely to 
generate tourism and paid overnight stays in the Municipality. 

 
(f) Consult with the Municipality with respect to tangible 

development projects within the Municipality that are likely to generate tourism and 
paid overnight stays in the Municipality. 



3 00428635-1 - 14640  

(g) Employ destination marketing, professional and support staff, 
and consultants with the expertise to accomplish the above tasks as well as any 
special projects set forth in section 4 below. 

 
4. Special Projects. In addition to the activities listed in section 3 above, 

Visit Racine County will undertake the following specified projects/activities with 
respect to tourism promotion and tourism development within the Municipality: 

 

• Caledonia Conservancy & Trails 
• Caledonia Historical Village 
• Douglas Avenue Corridor 
• Attraction Improvement/Growth 

• Parks and Recreation 
• Franksville Commercial District 
• Campgrounds and Local Events 

 
5. Reporting. On or before April 1st of each year, Visit Racine County shall 

report the following information to the Municipality: (a) all expenditures of one 
thousand ($1,000) Dollars or more by Visit Racine County with respect to tourism 
promotion and tourism development in the previous calendar year that Visit Racine 
County deemed reasonably likely to generate paid overnight stays in the 
Municipality; and (b) a list of each member of Visit Racine County’s board of 
directors, and the name of the business entity the board member owns, operates, or 
is employed by, if any. O n  o r  b e f o r e  J u l y  1 s t  o f  e a c h  y e a r ,  V i s i t  R a c i n e  
C o u n t y  w i l l  p r e s e n t  an  u p d a t e  t o  t h e  Ca l ed on i a  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  
a b o u t :  ( a )  t h e  p r i o r  y e a r ’ s  me t r i c s  r e l a t e d  t o  t o u r i sm ;  an d  ( b )  
t h e  c u r r e n t  y e a r  t ou r i s m  m e t r i c s .  It is agreed that Visit Racine County’s 
board shall include at least one board member who is an owner or operator of a 
lodging facility that collects the room tax within the Municipality. The parties 
acknowledge and agree that tourism promotion and tourism development activities 
by Visit Racine County within the greater Racine County area shall constitute 
tourism promotion and tourism development in the Municipality to the extent such 
activities are reasonably likely to generate paid overnight stays within the 
Municipality. 

 
6. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall become effective as of 

the date and year first above written, shall be reviewed annually by the Municipality 
and Visit Racine County, and continue in effect until terminated as follows: 

 
(a) Upon at least three (3) months’ notice from either party to the 

other effective as of January 1, 2025 through January 1, 2028. 
 

(b) Upon mutual agreement of the parties; 
 

(c) Upon the Municipality ceasing to collect a room tax pursuant to 
section 66.0615 of the Wisconsin statutes or a successor statute. 

7. Independent Contractor Status. Visit Racine County will be acting as 



4 00428635-1 - 14640  

an independent contractor in providing services hereunder. Visit Racine County will 
have complete control over its own employees and the manner and means of 
performing its obligations hereunder, except that the performance of any services at 
the Municipality’s facilities shall be subject to the rules, policies and procedures 
established therefor by the Municipality from time to time. 

 
 



5 00428635-1 - 14640  

8. Covenant / Indemnification. Visit Racine County represents that it is 
a non-profit convention and visitors bureau engaged in tourism promotion and 
tourism development within Racine County, Wisconsin with a mission to promote 
and advocate for the development of Racine County, Wisconsin as an attractive 
visitor destination to enhance the local economy. Visit Racine County will use the 
room tax forwarded to it as provided in sections 3 and 4 above and will provide the 
reporting described in section 5 above. Visit Racine County makes no other 
representations, warranties, or covenants with respect to the Municipality’s activities 
with respect to room tax, including, without limitation, as to whether such activities 
and the Municipality’s performance of this Agreement comply with section 66.0615 
of the Wisconsin statutes. The Municipality agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
Visit Racine County harmless from and against any and all fault, liabilities, costs, 
expenses, claims, demands, or lawsuits incurred by, or brought against, Visit Racine 
County arising out of, related to, or connected with, allegations that the 
Municipality’s performance under this Agreement or the Municipality’s other room 
tax related activities are illegal or otherwise unlawful under section 66.0615 of the 
Wisconsin statutes. Nothing herein shall be construed to require any 
indemnification, hold harmless or defense of a claim by the Municipality that Visit 
Racine County breached this Agreement. 

 
9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, 

whether written or oral, between the parties with respect to its subject matter and 
constitutes a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 
10. Modification. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, or 

otherwise modified by a writing executed by both parties hereto. 
 

11. Successors. This Agreement will apply to, be binding in all respects 
upon, and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, legal 
representatives, successors, and permitted assigns of the parties. 

 
12. Governing Law. All matters relating to or arising out of this Agreement 

or the transaction contemplated herein and the rights of the parties will be governed 
by and construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of Wisconsin without 
regard to conflicts of laws principles that would require the application of any other 
law. 

 
13. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event any proceeding is brought in respect of 

this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and other costs incurred in such proceeding, in addition to any relief to which 
such party may be entitled. 

 
14. Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted 

by this Agreement shall be in writing and will be effective, and any applicable time 
period shall commence, when mailed to the following address by certified mail or by 



6 00428635-1 - 14640  

a nationally recognized overnight courier service (costs prepaid) addressed to the 
following address: 

 
VISIT RACINE COUNTY: Executive Director 

14015 Washington Avenue 
Sturtevant, Wisconsin 53177 

 
MUNICIPALITY: Village of Caledonia 

Attn: Administrator 
 5043 Chester Lane 

Racine, WI 53402 
 

15. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this 
Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Any provision of this Agreement held 
invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree will remain in full force and effect to 
the extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this 
Agreement as of the date first written above. 

This Agreement has been signed by the parties through their duly authorized 
representatives effective as of the  day of January, 2025. 

 
RACINE COUNTY CONVENTION VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 
AND BUREAU, INC. 

 
 
 
By:    By:   

Cari Greving,  Tom Weatherston, President 
Executive Director 

 
WITNESS:   
Todd Willis, Administrator 



1 00428635-1 - 14640  

AGREEMENT FOR TOURISM PROMOTION 
AND TOURISM DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Racine County Convention 

and Visitors Bureau, Inc. (d/b/a Visit Racine County), a Wisconsin non-stock 
corporation (“Visit Racine County”), and the Village of Caledonia, a Wisconsin 
municipal corporation (the “Municipality”). This Agreement will be in effect starting 
January 1, 2025 through January 1, 20287. 

R E C I T A L S: 
 

A. The Municipality has implemented a room tax under section 66.0615 of 
the Wisconsin statutes. 

B. Section 66.0615 of the Wisconsin statutes requires a municipality 
collecting a room tax to forward at least 70% of the room tax collected by it to a 
tourism entity or a tourism commission to be spent on tourism promotion and 
tourism development (except where grandfathering allows the municipality to 
forward a lesser amount). 

C. Visit Racine County is a non-profit convention and visitors bureau 
engaged in tourism promotion and tourism development within Racine County, 
Wisconsin with a mission to promote and advocate for the development of Racine 
County, Wisconsin as an attractive visitor destination in order to enhance the local 
economy. 

 

D. The parties wish to enter into an agreement whereby the Municipality 
will forward 80% of the room tax collected by the Municipality to Visit Racine County 
to be used by Visit Racine County for tourism promotion and tourism development 
within the Municipality. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration forof the mutual covenants herein, and 
for other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed as follows: 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference as 
though set forth in their entirety. 

2. Room Tax. The Municipality will forward 80% of the room tax collected 
by it to Visit Racine County in the manner required by section 66.0615 of the 
Wisconsin statutes to be spent by Visit Racine County on tourism promotion and 
tourism development. The room tax required to be forwarded by the Municipality to 
Visit Racine County hereunder shall be remitted to Visit Racine County monthly. In 
the case of any change in the percentage of room tax collections the Municipality is 
required to forward to a tourism entity or commission under section 66.0615 of the 
Wisconsin statutes, whether due to a change in the law or a change in 
circumstances, then: 



2 00428635-1 - 14640  

(a) in the event the percentage the Municipality is required to forward 
to a tourism entity or commission increases above the percentage stated in this 
section, the percentage described in this section shall be automatically increased to 
match the percentage of room tax collections the Municipality is required to forward 
to a tourism entity or commission under the then current version of the law as of 
the effective date of the change under the law, and 

 
(b) in the event the percentage the Municipality is required to forward 

to a tourism entity or commission decreases below the percentage stated in this 
section, the percentage described in this section may be decreased, upon written 
notice by the Municipality to Visit Racine County, to the lower percentage required 
under the then current version of the law (or a greater amount acceptable to the 
Municipality) with such change taking effect as of the date three (3) months after 
notice is given. Notwithstanding the above, if the decrease in the amount to be 
forwarded is mandatory, then the decrease shall be effective as the effective date of 
the change under the law. The notice from the Municipality shall include an 
explanation as to the reason for the decrease. 

 
3. Visit Racine County Services. In exchange for the Municipality 

forwarding room tax as required by section 2 above, Visit Racine County agrees to 
serve as the tourism entity for the Municipality under section 66.0615 of the 
Wisconsin statutes and to spend such room tax on tourism promotion and tourism 
development likely to result in paid overnight stays in the Municipality, including, 
without limitation, to: 

 
(a) Undertake marketing projects, including advertising media buys, 

creation and distribution of printed or electronic promotional tourist materials, and 
efforts to recruit conventions, sporting events, or motorcoach groups to the greater 
Racine County area, including, to the Municipality. 

 
(b) Provide transient informational services. 

 
(c) Promote and market events and attractions within the 

Municipality through the Municipality’s normal marketing and advertising channels. 

(d) Generally promote and advocate for greater Racine County, 
including the Municipality, as an attractive destination for recreational, business, or 
educational purposes. 

(e) Attract events to the greater Racine County area that are likely to 
generate tourism and paid overnight stays in the Municipality. 

 
(f) Consult with the Municipality with respect to tangible 

development projects within the Municipality that are likely to generate tourism and 
paid overnight stays in the Municipality. 



3 00428635-1 - 14640  

(g) Employ destination marketing, professional and support staff, 
and consultants with the expertise to accomplish the above tasks as well as any 
special projects set forth in section 4 below. 

 
4. Special Projects. In addition to the activities listed in section 3 above, 

Visit Racine County will undertake the following specified projects/activities with 
respect to tourism promotion and tourism development within the Municipality: 

 

• Caledonia Conservancy & Trails 

• Caledonia Historical Village 

• Douglas Avenue Corridor 

• Attraction Improvement/Growth 

• Parks and Recreation 

• Franksville Commercial District 

• Campgrounds and Local Events 

 
5. Reporting. On or before April 1st of each year, Visit Racine County shall 

report the following information to the Municipality: (a) all expenditures of one 
thousand ($1,000) Dollars or more by Visit Racine County with respect to tourism 
promotion and tourism development in the previous calendar year that Visit Racine 
County deemed reasonably likely to generate paid overnight stays in the 
Municipality; and (b) a list of each member of Visit Racine County’s board of 
directors, and the name of the business entity the board member owns, operates, or 
is employed by, if any. O n  o r  b e f o r e  J u l y  1 s t  o f  e a c h  y e a r ,  V i s i t  R a c i n e  
C o u n t y  w i l l  p r e s e n t  a n  u p d a t e  t o  t h e  C a l e d o n i a  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  
a b o u t :  ( a )  t h e  p r i o r  y e a r ’ s  m e t r i c s  r e l a t e d  t o  t o u r i s m ;  a n d  ( b )  
t h e  c u r r e n t  y e a r  t o u r i s m  m e t r i c s .  It is agreed that Visit Racine County’s 
board shall include at least one board member who is an owner or operator of a 
lodging facility that collects the room tax within the Municipality. The parties 
acknowledge and agree that tourism promotion and tourism development activities 
by Visit Racine County within the greater Racine County area shall constitute 
tourism promotion and tourism development in the Municipality to the extent such 
activities are reasonably likely to generate paid overnight stays within the 
Municipality. 

 
6. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall become effective as of 

the date and year first above written, shall be reviewed annually by the Municipality 
and Visit Racine County, and continue in effect until terminated as follows: 

 
(a) Upon at least three (3) months’ notice from either party to the 

other effective as of January 1, 2025 through January 1, 20287. 
 

(b) Upon mutual agreement of the parties; 

 
(c) Upon the Municipality ceasing to collect a room tax pursuant to 

section 66.0615 of the Wisconsin statutes or a successor statute. 

7. Independent Contractor Status. Visit Racine County will be acting as 

Formatted: Superscript



4 00428635-1 - 14640  

an independent contractor in providing services hereunder. Visit Racine County will 
have complete control over its own employees and the manner and means of 
performing its obligations hereunder, except that the performance of any services at 
the Municipality’s facilities shall be subject to the rules, policies and procedures 
established therefor by the Municipality from time to time. 



5 00428635-1 - 14640  

8. Covenant / Indemnification. Visit Racine County represents that it is 
a non-profit convention and visitors bureau engaged in tourism promotion and 
tourism development within Racine County, Wisconsin with a mission to promote 
and advocate for the development of Racine County, Wisconsin as an attractive 
visitor destination to enhance the local economy. Visit Racine County will use the 
room tax forwarded to it as provided in sections 3 and 4 above and will provide the 
reporting described in section 5 above. Visit Racine County makes no other 
representations, warranties, or covenants with respect to the Municipality’s activities 
with respect to room tax, including, without limitation, as to whether such activities 
and the Municipality’s performance of this Agreement comply with section 66.0615 
of the Wisconsin statutes. The Municipality agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
Visit Racine County harmless from and against any and all fault, liabilities, costs, 
expenses, claims, demands, or lawsuits incurred by, or brought against, Visit Racine 
County arising out of, related to, or connected with, allegations that the 
Municipality’s performance under this Agreement or the Municipality’s other room 
tax related activities are illegal or otherwise unlawful under section 66.0615 of the 
Wisconsin statutes. Nothing herein shall be construed to require any 
indemnification, hold harmless or defense of a claim by the Municipality that Visit 
Racine County breached this Agreement. 

 
9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, 

whether written or oral, between the parties with respect to its subject matter and 
constitutes a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 
10. Modification. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, or 

otherwise modified by a writing executed by both parties hereto. 
 

11. Successors. This Agreement will apply to, be binding in all respects 
upon, and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, legal 
representatives, successors, and permitted assigns of the parties. 

 
12. Governing Law. All matters relating to or arising out of this Agreement 

or the transaction contemplated herein and the rights of the parties will be governed 
by and construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of Wisconsin without 
regard to conflicts of laws principles that would require the application of any other 
law. 

 
13. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event any proceeding is brought in respect of 

this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and other costs incurred in such proceeding, in addition to any relief to which 
such party may be entitled. 

 
14. Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted 

by this Agreement shall be in writing and will be effective, and any applicable time 
period shall commence, when mailed to the following address by certified mail or by 



6 00428635-1 - 14640  

a nationally recognized overnight courier service (costs prepaid) addressed to the 
following address: 

 
VISIT RACINE COUNTY: Executive Director 

14015 Washington Avenue 
Sturtevant, Wisconsin 53177 

 
MUNICIPALITY: Village of Caledonia 

Attn: Administrator 
 5043 Chester Lane 

Racine, WI 53402 
 

15. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this 
Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Any provision of this Agreement held 
invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree will remain in full force and effect to 
the extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this 
Agreement as of the date first written above. 

This Agreement has been signed by the parties through their duly authorized 
representatives effective as of the  day of January, 2025. 

 
RACINE COUNTY CONVENTION VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 
AND BUREAU, INC. 

 
 
 
By:    By:   

Cari Greving,  Tom Weatherston, President 
Executive Director 

 
WITNESS:   
Todd Willis, Administrator 



 1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-044 
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPLOSIVES AND BLASTING PERMIT RENEWAL 

FOR THE EXISTING QUARRY AT 1501 3 MILE ROAD 
 

The Village Board for the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI do resolve as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, the Owner/Applicant, Payne & Dolan, Inc., has submitted the permit application 
(Exhibit A) for renewing the Explosives and Blasting Permit at 1301 3 Mile Road (“Property”) per Title 
7 Chapter 10 of the Village Code of Ordinances; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Property has a Conditional Use Permit to operate and further develop the exiting 
limestone quarry including earthmoving, blasting, crushing, sorting and sizing, stockpiling, 
transportation and reclamation per Resolution No. 2024-065.  This conditional use is renewed every 2 
years in conjunction with the Blasting and Nonmetallic Mining Permit Renewal; and  

 
WHERAS, Village Staff have reviewed the application and supporting documentation and find it 

to be in line with the requirements of Title 7 Chapter 10 with the exception of multiple operators 
requiring their license to be updated during the permit period; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended approval to the Village Board for the 

Permit Renewal at the May 13, 2025 meeting subject to the Village Engineer’s Memo dated May 6, 
2025 (Exhibit B); and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia 

that the Explosives and Blasting Permit Renewal is hereby approved for the reasons and requirements 
set forth in Exhibit A and in compliance with all applicable Village Ordinances. 

 
 
Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this ____ day of 
May, 2025. 

      VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 
 
 
      By:       
       Thomas Weatherston 
       Village President 
 
      Attest:       
       Jennifer Bass 
       Village Clerk 



P:\NOTICES-AGENDAS\Committee of the Whole\2025\Current Agenda Packet Items\Payne and Dolan Blasting Permit - 2025.docx 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:  May 6, 2025 
 
To:  Committee of the Whole 
  Village Board 
 
From:  Ryan Schmidt, P.E. 
  Village Engineer 
 
Re:  Payne & Dolan – Racine Quarry – Explosives and Blasting Permit 2025  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Village of Caledonia issues and annual Explosives and Blasting Permit for the Payne 
and Dolan Racine Quarry. The information and the required permit fees for the Permit was 
submitted by Payne & Dolan on April 14, 2025. The information for the permit was reviewed 
by the Engineering Department and appears to be in order.  There is one expired license as 
of the application date and two that will expire during the permit period that will need to be 
updated at those times.  An updated Blaster List is required to be submitted for the Village 
Board Meeting by May 27th to correct the current expired license of one individual and if any 
modifications are made during the permit period, a new list shall be provided.  
 
This Explosive and Blasting Permit is valid from July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026. This 
Explosive and Blasting Permit is hereby recommended for approval at the May 13th 
Committee of the Whole meeting and the May 27th Village Board Meeting.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Move to recommend approval to the Village Board the Explosive and Blasting Permit 
for Payne & Dolan, Inc. – Racine Quarry subject to the following: 
 

1. An updated Licensed Blaster List for the Racine Quarry is submitted to 
the Village as licenses are renewed or staff are added so a current list is 
on file at the Village Hall.  





















 1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-045 
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A BUILDING, SITE, AND OPERATION PLAN TO 

CONSTRUCT A ±6,713 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL BUILDING ON THE PARCEL 
LOCATED NORTH OF 4005 QUICK DRIVE; RA DOMANIK INVESTMENTS LLC, 

OWNER; NATHAN REMITZ, APPLICANT 
 

The Village Board for the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI do resolve as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, Nathan Remitz, Applicant, has requested to construct a ±6,713 square-foot 
industrial building on the parcel located north of 4005 Quick Drive; Parcel Id. No. 104-04-22-27-
016-070, Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village Plan Commission has recommended approval of the building, 
site, and operation plan subject to the condition that the applicant modifies the eastern portion of 
the building to include additional masonry on the façade and adding shielding to the proposed 
exterior lighting, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed use is allowed by underlying zoning and building, site, and operations plan 
review process. 

2. This use is consistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Plan designation of 
manufacturing. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of 
Caledonia that the site plan as set forth above, is hereby approved for the same reasons and 
requirements set forth above and subject to the same conditions imposed by the Village Plan 
Commission. 
 
Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this ____ 
day of May, 2025. 
 
      VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 
  
      By:        
       Thomas Weatherston 

Village President 
 

      Attest:        
       Jennifer Bass 

Village Clerk 
 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-046 
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A BUILDING, SITE, AND OPERATION PLAN TO 

CONSTRUCT A ±960 SQUARE-FOOT EXPANSION OF THE GROUND EQUIPMENT AREA 
FOR THE OPERATION OF AN EXISTING TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER LOCATED 

AT 6922 NICHOLSON ROAD, VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA; VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA, 
OWNER; DANIEL ADAMS, APPLICANT 

 
The Village Board for the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI do resolve as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, Daniel Adams, Applicant, has requested an approval of a site, building, and 
operations plan to construct a ±960 square-foot expansion area for the construction of telecommunications 
equipment for the operation of an existing cell tower located at 6922 Nicholson Road, Parcel ID No. 104-
04-22-16-004-000, Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Caledonia Plan Commission recommended approval of the site, 

building, and operations plan for the following reason: 
 

1. The proposed use is allowed by underlying zoning through the building, site, and operation plan 
review process. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, 
that the requested building, site, and operations plan set forth above, is hereby approved for the same 
reasons set forth above and subject to the same contingency imposed by the Village Plan Commission. 
 
Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this _____ day of 
May, 2025. 
 

 
     VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 
  
     By:        
      Thomas Weatherston 

Village President 
 

     Attest:        
      Jennifer Bass 

Village Clerk 
 



 1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-047 
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL CONDOMINIUM PLAT FOR STORAGESHOPUSA 

COMMERCIAL CONDOMINIUMS LOCATED AT 7930 E. FRONTAGE ROAD 
 

The Village Board for the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, WI do resolve as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owner and Applicant, Greg Thomas of StorageShopUSA-Caledonia, LLC, has submitted 
a Final Plat for a Condominium Plat to the Village for consideration at 7930 E Frontage Road.  The proposed 
Condominium Plat proposes 22 units made up of 11- 2 unit commercial buildings; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has been approved for the rezone request from A-2 to B-3 Highway Business 
District via Ordinance 2024-10. The Aplicant has also had a Site, Building, and Operation Plan approved via 
Resolution 2024-089 and Private On-site Improvement Plans and a Storm Water Management Plan for the 
Development have been approved on 4-16-2025 and 4-7-2025 respectively; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 13, 2025, the Village Board recommended conditional approval of the Concept Plan 

for a Commercial Condominium Plat, waivers to Sec.14-3-4(c)(4)(b)(ii) (40% Open Space) and Sec. 14-3-5(b) 
(conservation easement) of the Village’s Code of Ordinances, and waiving the requirement of a separate 
preliminary and final plat review per Sec 14-3 and authorizing the combination of these two reviews via Resolution 
2025-036; and 
  

WHEREAS, after Staff review of the Final Condominium Plat for StorageShopUSA, the Village Engineer 
submitted a Memo for the Village Plan Commission.  The Village Engineer’s Memo dated May 13, 2025, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, recommended conditional approval of the Final Plat subject to the 5 conditions listed therein; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village Plan Commission on May 19, 2025, recommended conditional approval of the Final 

Condo Plat for Homestead Acres Subdivision in accordance with the Village Engineers Memo (Exhibit A); and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia that the Final 
Condominium Plat for StorageShopUSA-Caledonia, LLC is hereby approved for the reasons and requirements set 
forth in Exhibit A, and subject to the same conditions imposed by the Village Plan Commission, and as described 
in Exhibit A and in compliance with all applicable Village Ordinances. 

 
Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this ____ day of May, 2025. 

       
 

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 
 
      By:       
       Thomas Weatherston 
       Village President 
 
      Attest:       
       Jennifer Bass 
       Village Clerk 



P a g e  1 | 3 
P:\ENGINEER\Memos\2025\PC- FinalPlat StorageShopUSA.docx 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:  May 13, 2025  
 
To:  Plan Commission 

Village Board 
 
From:  Ryan Schmidt, P.E. 
  Village Engineer 
 
Re: Final Condominium Plat – Storage Shop USA – 7930 E. Frontage Road 

Parcel ID 104-04-22-07-053-000 
Applicant & Owner – Greg Thomas – Storage Shop USA 
 

Recommended Motions: 
1. That the Plan Commission recommends to the Village Board to approve the Final 

Condominium Plat subject to the 5 conditions listed in the Village Engineer’s 
Memorandum. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
Storage Shop USA has submitted a Final Condominium Plat to the Planning & Engineering 
Department for a 22 Unit commercial condominium. The property is located at 7930 E. 
Frontage Road and the project includes 11 duplex buildings with twenty-two (22) 1,250 
square-foot condominium units used for commercial business spaces. To create individual 
Parcel ID’s for the units and meet the intended business model for the development, a 
Condominium Plat is required.  
 
The property has been approved for a Zoning District Amendment via Ordinance 2024-10 to 
rezone the property from A-2 to B-3 Highway Business District. The property has had a Site, 
Building, and Operation Plan approved via Resolution 2024-089 and Private On-site 
Improvement Plans and a Storm Water Management Plan for the Development have been 
approved on 4-16-2025 and 4-7-2025 respectively.  The Concept Condo Plat was approved 
by Plan Commission on April 28th and by the Village Board on May 13th, 2025 via Resolution 
2025-036 with a net density, waivers to open space and conservation easements, and a 
waiver allowing staff to combine the Preliminary and Final Condo Plat Review process per 
Title 14.  
 
ZONING 
The property, as described above, has been rezoned to meet Village Standards and has also 
acquired the BSO approvals necessary to develop.  Declaration documents have been 
submitted for the condominium. These are going to be reviewed and approved by the Village 
prior to the recording of the Final Plat. 
   
 



P a g e  2 | 3 
P:\ENGINEER\Memos\2025\PC- FinalPlat StorageShopUSA.docx 

ENGINEERING & UTILITY DISTRICT 
The property is located within the Urban Service Area but does not have Sewer or Water 
available at this time. The property will need to execute a Declaration of Restrictive 
Covenants document requiring that when municipal Sanitary Sewer and Water are 
available, that the property be connected and on-site improvements are updated to meet 
WDNR and Caledonia Utility District Standards. This document will need to be reviewed and 
approved by the Village Attorney and Public Services Director prior to recording.  
 
A letter has been provided from the DOT dated July 3, 2014 provides evidence that Trans233 
of the Wisconsin State Statutes does not enforce condominium plats.  This information 
presented in the letter appears to still be in effect.  In addition, an environmental site 
assessment package has been provided by the developer highlighting the condition of the 
property and lack of wetlands. The Plat has been resubmitted with updated information 
showing the necessary access restrictions, vision triangles, and updated legal descriptions 
as requested.  
 
Final Owner’s and Village of Caledonia Village Board Certificate locations shall be provided 
on the Final Plat for recording purposes. Any other signatures shall be included as required 
by Chapter 703 for the Final Plat. All signatures shall be acquired prior to the Village of 
Caledonia signature, which shall be last prior to recording with Racine County. Floor Plans 
may be required by Wis. Stat 703.11 (2)(d) and included on the Final Plat for recording. 
 

  



P a g e  3 | 3 
P:\ENGINEER\Memos\2025\PC- FinalPlat StorageShopUSA.docx 

Exhibit A 
Conditions of approval for the proposed Final Condominium Plat: 
 
1. Owner/Developer shall sign and execute the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants 

requiring the need to connect to Municipal Sewer and Water once available.  
2. Owner/Developer to execute and record the Village approved revision of the 

declaration documents for the condominium in conjunction with the recording of the 
Final Plat. 

3. Owner/Developer to execute the Storm Water Easement Agreements with the Village 
for the Storm Water Management Facilities on-site. 

4. Certificate and Signature Page is included for the Owner, Village Board, and any others 
as required in addition to including floor plans per Chapter 703. 

5. The Final Condominium Plat must conform to all Ordinances in Title 9, 14, and 18 of 
Municipal Code, Trans233, and Chapter 703 of Wis. Stats.  



♦ 
VILLAGE OF 

CALEDONIA 

1, � 

� 

(i 

1

1 

I :' 
. I 
I I Ii 

I 

I 

N 

7930 E. FRONTAGE ROAD 
0 125 250 500 

US Feet A 



30.55'
30.63' 30.67' 30.69'

40.50'

43.18'

86.94'86.81'

82.55'

40.50'

40.50'

44.74'

55.25'

75.4'

75.37'10.5'10.5'

66.0'
66.0'

10.5' 10.5'

10.5'

20.5'

10.5'

10.5'

82.67'

I, ZACHARY M REYNOLDS, WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
S-3223, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE SURVEYED THE ABOVE
DESCRIBED PROPERTY AND THAT THIS SURVEY AND PLAT IS CORRECT
TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF WITH THE INFORMATION
PROVIDED, BY THE ORDER OF THOSE LISTED HEREON, AND IS AN
ACCURATE REPRESENTATION OF THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARY LINES,
EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS, AND THOSE TO BE CONSTRUCTED UPON THE
PROPERTY FROM THE INFORMATION PROVIDED, AND THAT THIS SURVEY
COMPLIES WITH AE-7 OF THE WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

FURTHERMORE, IN COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 703.11 WISCONSIN
STATUTES, THE CONDOMINIUM PLAT SHOWN HEREON IS A CORRECT
REPRESENTATION OF "STORAGESHOPUSA - CALEDONIA" AS PROPOSED
AT THE DATE HEREOF, AND THE IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATION OF
EACH UNIT, COMMON ELEMENTS, AND LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS
CAN BE DETERMINED FROM THE PLAT.  THE UNDERSIGNED SURVEYOR
MAKES NO CERTIFICATION AS TO THE ACCURACY OF THE CONDOMINIUM
BUILDINGS AND UNITS CONTAINED IN THE PLAT AND THE APPROXIMATE
DIMENSIONS AND FLOOR AREAS THEREOF.

               .
ZACHARY M REYNOLDS, S-3223 DATE
WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

PARCEL:
UNPLATTED LANDS, BEING A PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE FRACTIONAL
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE VILLAGE OF
CALEDONIA, COUNTY OF RACINE, STATE OF WISCONSIN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 7; THENCE,
ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER, SOUTH 89° 17' 13" EAST, 1002.54
FEET; THENCE, SOUTH 01° 21' 04" WEST, 67.26 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE WEST
RIGHT-OF-WAY OF HAGEMANN ROAD, AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE, CONTINUING
ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 01° 21' 04" WEST, 412.66 FEET; THENCE, NORTH
89° 07' 47" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 399.77 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY
OF EAST FRONTAGE ROAD; THENCE, ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY,  NORTH 13° 05' 07"
EAST, 106.88 FEET; THENCE, CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 00° 50' 32"
EAST, 174.58 FEET; THENCE, SOUTH 89° 12' 24" EAST, 194.46 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 00° 14'
16" EAST, 140.09 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 7 MILE ROAD; THENCE,
ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 89° 17' 13" EAST, 178.62 FEET; THENCE, CONTINUING
ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 50° 52' 07" EAST, 11.68 FEET, BACK TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING. CONTAINS 132,970 SQUARE FEET OR 3.05 ACRES.

NOTES

LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AS SURVEYED

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

A CONDOMINIUM PLAT

OFFICE OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS

________________________ COUNTY, WISCONSIN

RECEIVED FOR RECORD _____________________

20_____ AT _____________ O'CLOCK ______M AS

DOCUMENT NO. ____________________________

IN VOLUME ______________ OF CONDOMINIUM

PLATS  ON PAGE(S) _________________________

_____________________________________________
  KARIE L. POPE, REGISTER OF DEEDS
THERE ARE NO OBJECTIONS TO THIS CONDOMINIUM
PLAT WITH RESPECT TO CHAPTER 703 WISCONSIN
STATUTES AND IS HEREBY APPROVED FOR
RECORDING.

DATED THIS _____ DAY  OF __________________, 20_____

____________________________________________________
RACINE COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

STORAGESHOPUSA - CALEDONIA

LEGEND 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

PLATTED LINE
PROPERTY LINE 

PREPARED FOR:

PREPARED BY:

WYSER ENGINEERING
300 EAST FRONT STREET
MOUNT HOREB, WI 53572
www.wyserengineering.com

SURVEYED BY:
DRAWN BY:
APPROVED BY:

DZ/ML

ZMR
AJL

STORAGESHOPUSA -
CALEDONIA LLC
6810 CROSS COUNTRY
ROAD
VERONA, WI 53593

SHEET 1 OF 1 SHEET 

FOUND 3/4" REBAR

 A TRACT OF LAND AS DESCRIBED IN A TRUSTEE'S DEED, RECORDED ON DECEMBER 16,
2024 AS DOCUMENT NO. 2691446, LOCATED IN PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 7, TOWN 4 NORTH, RANGE 22 EAST, IN THE
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA, RACINE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

1. FIELD WORK PERFORMED BY WYSER ENGINEERING, LLC ON THE
WEEK OF JUNE 3 AND OCTOBER 30, 2024.

2. NORTH REFERENCE FOR THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE
WISCONSIN COORDINATE REFRENCE SYSTEM, NAD 83 (2011)
WISCRS-RACINE, GRID NORTH.
THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 7,
T4N, R22E, BEARS S 89° 17' 13" E.

3. BUILDING PLANS & DIMENSIONS ARE BASED UPON DRAWINGS
PROVIDED BY THE OWNER AND DO NOT REPRESENT AS-BUILT
CONDITIONS.

4. ALL IMPROVEMENTS DEPICTED WITHIN THE CONDOMINIUM
LIMITS ARE PROPOSED.

5. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL AREAS OUTSIDE OF THE UNIT
BOUNDARIES ARE COMMON ELEMENTS.

6. ALL AREAS DEPICTED ON THE CONDOMINIUM PLAT AS LIMITED
COMMON ELEMENTS (LCE's) SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE
TERMS & CONDITIONS OF THE DECLARATION.

7. UNIT AREAS ARE APPROXIMATE AND DO NOT SUPERSEDE UNIT
BOUNDARIES AS SET FORTH IN THE DECLARATION.

8. THIS PARCEL IS SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS & AGREEMENTS,
BOTH RECORDED AND UNRECORDED .

PROPOSED EDGE OF ASPHALT 
PROPOSED BUILDING FOOTPRINT

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTL.C.E.

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 1

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 2
50

.0
'

50
.0

'

25.0'

25.0' 25.0'

25.0'

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 1

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 2

50
.0

'

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 3

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 4
50

.0
'

50
.0

'

25.0'

25.0' 25.0'

25.0'

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 3

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 4

50
.0

'

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 5

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 6
50

.0
'

50
.0

'

25.0'

25.0' 25.0'

25.0'

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 5

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 6

50
.0

'

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 7

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 8
50

.0
'

50
.0

'

25.0'

25.0' 25.0'

25.0'

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 7

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 8

50
.0

'

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 9

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 1
0

50
.0

'

50
.0

'

25.0'

25.0' 25.0'

25.0'

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 9

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 1

0

50
.0

'

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 1
1

12
50

 S
Q.

FT
.

UN
IT

 1
2

50
.0

'

50
.0

'

25.0'

25.0' 25.0'

25.0'

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 1

1

L.
C.

E.
UN

IT
 1

2

50
.0

'

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 22

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 21

50.0'

50.0'

25
.0

'

25
.0

'
25

.0
'

25
.0

'

L.C.E.
UNIT 22

L.C.E.
UNIT 21

50.0'

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 20

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 19

50.0'

50.0'

25
.0

'

25
.0

'
25

.0
'

25
.0

'

L.C.E.
UNIT 20

L.C.E.
UNIT 19

50.0'

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 18

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 17

50.0'

50.0'

25
.0

'

25
.0

'
25

.0
'

25
.0

'

L.C.E.
UNIT 18

L.C.E.
UNIT 17

50.0'

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 16

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 15

50.0'

50.0'

25
.0

'

25
.0

'
25

.0
'

25
.0

'

L.C.E.
UNIT 16

L.C.E.
UNIT 5

50.0'

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 14

1250 SQ.FT.
UNIT 13

50.0'

50.0'

25
.0

'

25
.0

'
25

.0
'

25
.0

'
L.C.E.

UNIT 14

L.C.E.
UNIT 13

50.0'

TRUSTEE'S DEED DOCUMENT NO. 2691446
LANDS

E 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E 
R

O
A

D
14

5' 
RIG

HT
-O

F-
W

AY

H
A

G
EM

A
N

N
 R

O
A

D
66

' R
IG

HT
-O

F-
W

AY

7 MILE ROAD
RIGHT-OF-WAY VARIES

WELL HOUSE

LANDS

LANDS
LANDS

( N
 0°

 51
' 0

7"
 E 

)*
( N

 0°
 35

' 3
4"

 W
   1

74
.71

' )
N 

0°
 50

' 3
2"

 E 
    

17
4.5

8'

( N 89° 16' 00" E   194.56' )
S 89° 12' 24" E     194.46'

( N
 1°

 09
' 5

3"
 W

   1
39

.97
' )

N 
0°

 14
' 1

6"
 E 

    
14

0.0
9'

( N 89° 15' 58" E   180.67' )( S 89° 17' 21" E   178.51' )*S 89° 17' 13" E     178.62'

( S 51° 15' 49" E   11.62' )*
( S 37° 45' 49" E   11.62' )

S 50° 52' 07" E     11.68'

S 1
° 2

1' 
04

" W
    

 41
2.6

6'
( S

 0°
 05

' 4
0"

 E 
  4

10
.70

' )
( S

 1°
 21

' 0
0"

 W
 )*

N 89° 07' 47" W     399.77'
( N 89° 24' 00" W   399.93' )

( N
 13

° 0
5' 

14
" E

 )*
( N

 11
° 3

8' 
58

" E
   1

06
.82

' )
N 

13
° 0

5' 
07

" E
    

 10
6.8

8'

S 1
° 2

1' 
04

" W
67

.26
'

( S
 0°

 05
' 4

0"
 W

69
.05

' )

N 
0°

 50
' 3

2"
 E 

 13
2.4

7'
N 45

° 42
' 06

" E 
 10

.38
'

S 89° 17' 13" E  185.66'

( N 89° 16' 00" E )
( S 89° 17' 13" E   2335.80' )S 89° 17' 13" E  2335.74' MON. TO MON.

FOUND 1" IRON PIPE,
UNLESS SIZE NOTED

FOUND PLSS SECTION
MONUMENT TYPE NOTED

NORTH LINE OF NW-1/4

NORTH 1/4 CORNER
SEC. 7-T4N-R22E
FOUND  1-1/4" REBAR
N: 223,384.72
E: 596,793.29

NORTHWEST CORNER
SEC. 7-T4N-R22E

FOUND BRASS CAP MONUMENT
N:  223,413.78
N:  594,457.73

1002.54'
( 1002.80' ) 1333.22'

FOUND 3/4" REBAR 0.05'
SOUTH AND 0.11' EAST OF
LOT CORNER.
FOUND 1" PIPE 0.24' EAST
OF LOT CORNER. 1" PIPE
HELD FOR BEARING OF
SOUTH PROPERTY LINE

( S 13° 05' 14' W )
( S 11° 38' 12" W   124.07' )

S 13° 05' 07" W   124.47'

FOUND 3/4" REBAR 0.14'
SOUTH OF LOT CORNER.

FOUND 3/4" REBAR
0.31' NORTH OF

LOT CORNER.

33'          33'
6 6'

6 6'
33'          33'

60
'60
'

P.O.B.

80' X 150' STORM WATER DRAINAGE
EASEMENT SET FORTH VIA

SEPARATE, FUTURE DOCUMENT

150'

80'

80'
80' WIDE STORM WATER DRAINAGE

EASEMENT SET FORTH VIA
SEPARATE, FUTURE DOCUMENT

OWNERS:
JACOB VOIGT &

ANGELICA AMBROSINI

13505 7 MILE ROAD

OWNER:
HELEN A. PUTIRSKIS

7850 HAGEMANN ROAD

O
W

N
E

R
S:

JE
R

O
M

E
 &

 G
LO

R
IA

LU
E

N
E

BU
R

G
13

23
7 

7 
M

IL
E 

R
O

A
D

O
W

N
E

R
S:

JA
M

E
S 

R
E

V
O

C
. T

R
U

ST
D

A
TE

D
 5

/1
6/

20
14

79
19

 H
A

G
EM

A
N

N
 R

O
A

D

O
W

N
E

R
S:

D
E

BO
R

A
H

 A
. W

IL
LM

S 
TR

U
ST

D
A

TE
D

 JU
N

E
 9

, 2
0

11
79

0
9 

H
A

G
EM

A
N

N
 R

O
A

D

25' X 25' VISION
TRIANGLE

69
.99

'
NO

 A
CC

ES
S,

 P
ER

 D
OC

. N
O.

 2
29

22
03

NO ACCESS

NO HIGHWAY ACCESS

PARCEL
 132,970 SQ. FT.
OR 3.05 ACRES

(    )
(    )*

RECORD DATA PER DEED
DOCUMENT NO. 2691446
RECORD DATA PER
TPP NO. 1035-01-20

PER DOC. NO. 2292204

EASEMENT/RESTRICTION LINE

NO
 A

CC
ES

S
NO

 A
CC

ES
S

NO
 A

CC
ES

S 
TO

 H
AG

EM
AN

N 
RO

AD
 F

OR
 T

HE
 S

UB
JE

CT
 P

AR
CE

L
TO

 B
E 

SE
T 

FO
RT

H 
IN

 T
HE

 C
ON

DO
M

IN
IU

M
 IN

ST
RU

M
EN

TS
NO

 A
CC

ES
S



 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-048 
VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A TEMPORARY USE FOR A 30' X 60' CANOPY TENT 

FOR SALES OF FIREWORKS AND A 8’ X 40’ STORAGE CONTAINER FOR 
FIREWORK STORAGE FROM JUNE 19 THROUGH JULY 6, 2024; LOCATED AT 

5111 DOUGLAS AVENUE, VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA; DUSTIN HEIN, APPLICANT, 
GREENTREE STATION LLC, OWNER  

 
The Village Board for the Village of Caledonia resolves as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, Dustin Hein, Applicant, requested to place a 30’x 60’ temporary canopy tent 
for sales of fireworks and an 8’x 40’ shipping container for firework storage from June 19 through 
July 6, 2025, at 5111 Douglas Avenue, Parcel I.D. No. 104-04-23-20-103-110. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Village Plan Commission has recommended approval of the request, 
subject to the conditions attached hereto as Exhibit A, for the following reasons and requirements: 
 

1.  The proposed temporary use is allowed by underlying zoning. 
 
2.  The proposed temporary use is absent of detriment to the uses in the zoning 

district. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of 
Caledonia that the site plan as set forth above, is hereby approved for the same reasons and 
requirements set forth above and subject to the same conditions imposed by the Village Plan 
Commission. 
 
Adopted by the Village Board of the Village of Caledonia, Racine County, Wisconsin, this ____ 
day of May 2025. 
 
       

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA 
 
 
      By:       
       Thomas R. Weatherston 
       Village President 
 
 
      Attest:       
       Jennifer Bass 
       Village Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 



 2 

EXHIBIT A: Temporary Use Conditions of Approval 5111 Douglas Avenue 

1. Compliance. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions stated herein could result 
in the issuance of citation(s) and/or revocation of this permit. 

2. Plans. The proposed 30’ x 60’ temporary canopy tent, 8’x40’ shipping container, and 
parking area must be located and utilized in accordance with the plan and documents 
received by the Village Planning Department. All areas disturbed by the canopy tent and 
shipping container must be restored to their condition before the temporary use.  

3. Performance Standards. The applicant must comply with the provisions of Sec. 16-10-
5 Other Temporary and Accessory Use Restrictions, Village of Caledonia Code of 
Ordinances.  

4. Duration of Temporary Use. This temporary fireworks sales activity may be conducted 
from June 19, 2025 through July 6, 2025. The tent, shipping container, and all associated 
fireworks must be removed from the subject site within 10 working days after July 6, 2025.  

5. Hours of Operation. Firework sales are limited to 9am - 9pm, seven days a week. 

6. Compliance with Law. The applicant must obtain all necessary approvals and licenses 
from the Village of Caledonia. The applicant must also obtain all necessary federal, state, 
and local permits, approvals, and licenses, and they must comply with all applicable 
codes and regulations.  

7. No on-site demonstrations of fireworks are permitted. No on-site demonstrations of 
fireworks are permitted.  

8. Fire Department Approval. The applicant must contact the Village of Caledonia Fire 
Department for review and approval prior to occupying the site with the proposed 
temporary use. The Caledonia Fire Chief is requiring that there are “No Smoking” signs 
posted in the tent and on the storage container, a fire extinguisher is hung in the tent and 
readily accessible to customers and attendants, the storage container remains locked at 
all times and unlocked only to move product in and out of storage for sale, and a tent/site 
inspection is conducted by the Caledonia Fire Department prior to the stand opening for 
business. 

9. Parking. All parking for this operation must be on-site as illustrated on the submitted plan. 

10. Village of Caledonia Accepts No Liability. The Village of Caledonia accepts no liability 
through the issuance of this temporary approval for this site, or any proposed operations 
or fireworks sales. 

11. Signage. All signage will require a permit and must be in compliance with Sec. 16-11-6 
Temporary Sign Regulations. No signs are allowed in the right-of-way.  

12. Access. The applicant must allow any Village employee full and unlimited access to the 
project site at a reasonable time to investigate the project's implementation, operation, or 
maintenance. 

13. Amendments to Temporary Use Permit. No additions, deletions, or changes may be 
made to the project, site plan, or these conditions without the Village of Caledonia’s prior 
approval. All addition, deletion, and/or change requests must be submitted to the Village 
of Caledonia in writing. A minor change to the conditions of this permit, as deemed by the 
Zoning Administrator, may be made at a staff level, if authorized by the Zoning 
Administrator. 



 3 

14. Certificate of Insurance. The applicant must provide a certificate of insurance indicating 
that the Village of Caledonia is named as an additional insured by specific endorsement. 

15. Agreement. Your accepting of the temporary use approval and beginning the temporary 
use means that you have read, understand, and agree to follow all conditions of this 
approval. Therefore, Pyro Paradise Fireworks, Jacob Zamora and their heirs, successors, 
and assigns are responsible for full compliance with the above conditions. 



VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA Payment Approval Report - All Funds - Excluding US Bank Page:     1

Report dates: 1/1/2025-5/23/2025 May 22, 2025  10:07AM

Fund Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

ACH - DELTA DENTAL

General Fund 498 ACH - DELTA DENTAL 925270 5/12/2025 DELTA DENTAL CLAIM  05/12/2025 1,346.80 100-21534-000  Dental Deductions

General Fund 498 ACH - DELTA DENTAL 930265 06/01/2025 DELTA DENTAL VISI 06/01/2025 976.32 100-21536-000  Vision Deductions

General Fund 498 ACH - DELTA DENTAL 931885 05/19/2025 DELTA DENTAL CLAI 05/19/2025 1,324.80 100-21534-000  Dental Deductions

          Total ACH - DELTA DENTAL: 3,647.92

ACH - NORTH AMERICAN BENEFITS COMPANY

General Fund 3919 ACH - NORTH AMERICAN BENE 050125 05/16/2025 - N. AMERICAN BEN 05/16/2025 936.24 100-21533-000  Aflac Deductions

          Total ACH - NORTH AMERICAN BENEFITS COMPANY: 936.24

ACH - QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC

General Fund 3898 ACH - QUADIENT FINANCE USA  APRIL 2025 APRIL 2025; POSTAGE FOR VIL 05/02/2025 1,512.12 100-13-64040  Postage & Shipping

          Total ACH - QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC: 1,512.12

ACH - US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE

General Fund 9252 ACH - US BANK EQUIPMENT FI 555259969 JUN-25; MONTHLY COPIER/PRI 06/01/2025 1,195.41 100-90-62300  Office Equipment Rental & Main

          Total ACH - US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE: 1,195.41

ACH - WE ENERGIES

General Fund 380 ACH - WE ENERGIES 5472822147 BILLING PERIOD 4/4/2025 TO 5/ 05/20/2025 3,648.95 100-30-64140  Utilities

General Fund 380 ACH - WE ENERGIES 5472822147 BILLING PERIOD 4/4/2025 TO 5/ 05/20/2025 4,638.57 100-35-64140  Utilities

General Fund 380 ACH - WE ENERGIES 5472822147 BILLING PERIOD 4/4/2025 TO 5/ 05/20/2025 560.29 100-41-64140  Utilities

General Fund 380 ACH - WE ENERGIES 5472822147 BILLING PERIOD 4/4/2025 TO 5/ 05/20/2025 4,064.80 100-43-64140  Utilities

General Fund 380 ACH - WE ENERGIES 5472822147 BILLING PERIOD 4/4/2025 TO 5/ 05/20/2025 688.97 100-70-64140  Utilities

General Fund 380 ACH - WE ENERGIES 5472822147 BILLING PERIOD 4/4/2025 TO 5/ 05/20/2025 1,319.63 100-90-64290  Street Lighting

Cemetery Fund 380 ACH - WE ENERGIES 5472822147 BILLING PERIOD 4/4/2025 TO 5/ 05/20/2025 19.18 220-00-64140  Utilities

General Fund 380 ACH - WE ENERGIES 5474795535 STREET LIGHTING 04/15/2025/5 05/13/2025 11,818.08 100-90-64290  Street Lighting

          Total ACH - WE ENERGIES: 26,758.47

ACH - WEX BANK / MOBIL (FD)

General Fund 9366 ACH - WEX BANK / MOBIL (FD) 104660984 APR-MAY 2025 CFD VEHCLES F 05/07/2025 422.78 100-35-63200  Fuel, Oil, Fluids

          Total ACH - WEX BANK / MOBIL (FD): 422.78

AURORA HEALTH CARE

General Fund 155 AURORA HEALTH CARE 742859 APRIL 25; PRE-EMPLOYMENT S 05/09/2025 2,130.00 100-35-51100  Testing/Physicals

General Fund 155 AURORA HEALTH CARE 742859 APRIL 25; PRE-EMPLOYMENT S 05/09/2025 50.00 100-42-51100  Personnel Medical Exams



VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA Payment Approval Report - All Funds - Excluding US Bank Page:     2

Report dates: 1/1/2025-5/23/2025 May 22, 2025  10:07AM

Fund Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total AURORA HEALTH CARE: 2,180.00

BEARDSLEY CONCRETE LLC

Capital Projects Fund 9345 BEARDSLEY CONCRETE LLC 481 CURB REPAIRS - WHITE MANO 05/13/2025 13,314.20 400-41-65080  Road Improvements

          Total BEARDSLEY CONCRETE LLC: 13,314.20

BUILDING PERMIT REFUND VENDOR

General Fund 271 BUILDING PERMIT REFUND VE 3000235 REFUND LAND DIVISION DEVE 05/13/2025 2,580.00 100-23163-116  Michna Land Division

          Total BUILDING PERMIT REFUND VENDOR: 2,580.00

BUY RIGHT, INC.

General Fund 273 BUY RIGHT, INC. 14873-165480 FILTER 05/12/2025 8.05 100-30-63300  Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance

General Fund 273 BUY RIGHT, INC. 465572 REFRIGERANT FOR MED 22 05/14/2025 29.79 100-35-63300  Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance

          Total BUY RIGHT, INC.: 37.84

COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCONSIN

General Fund 392 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCO 917694 PAPER TOWEL - POLICE DEPT. 05/07/2025 51.14 100-43-64100  Janitorial Supplies

General Fund 392 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCO 917695 PAPERTOWEL - VILLAGE 05/07/2025 51.14 100-43-64100  Janitorial Supplies

General Fund 392 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCO 922641 PACKAGING TAPE AND DESK T 05/16/2025 9.93 100-35-64030  Office Supplies

General Fund 392 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCO 922641 HAND SOAP AND DISHWASHIN 05/16/2025 124.98 100-35-64100  Janitorial Supplies

General Fund 392 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCO 923092 BINDER CLIPS 05/15/2025 7.73 100-35-64030  Office Supplies

          Total COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCONSIN: 244.92

CONSERV FS INC.

General Fund 3962 CONSERV FS INC. 60072122 OIL; 2 @ 2.5 GALLONS 05/15/2025 66.25 100-41-63200  Fuel, Oil, Fluids

General Fund 3962 CONSERV FS INC. 777006153 4000 GALLONS UNLEADED GA 05/15/2025 11,328.00 100-41-63200  Fuel, Oil, Fluids

          Total CONSERV FS INC.: 11,394.25

CRAIG D. CHILDS, PHD, SC

General Fund 414 CRAIG D. CHILDS, PHD, SC 4215 LT EVALS; RAGER, SCHUSTER,  05/19/2025 2,700.00 100-30-51100  Testing/Physicals

          Total CRAIG D. CHILDS, PHD, SC: 2,700.00

D & S TECHNOLOGIES LLC

General Fund 436 D & S TECHNOLOGIES LLC 483 2025-2026; ANNUAL TELEPHON 05/21/2025 4,400.00 100-90-64300  IT Maintenance & Subscriptions



VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA Payment Approval Report - All Funds - Excluding US Bank Page:     3

Report dates: 1/1/2025-5/23/2025 May 22, 2025  10:07AM

Fund Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total D & S TECHNOLOGIES LLC: 4,400.00

EMS MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANTS, INC.

General Fund 9299 EMS MANAGEMENT & CONSUL EMS-015657 04/30/2025 TOTAL COLLECTION 04/30/2025 8,983.08 100-35-61000  Professional Services

          Total EMS MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANTS, INC.: 8,983.08

ENNIS PAINT  INC.

General Fund 601 ENNIS PAINT  INC. 476763 ROAD PAINT 05/15/2025 29,702.48 100-41-64090  Road Maintenance Materials

          Total ENNIS PAINT  INC.: 29,702.48

FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE & ENVIRO, LLC

TID #4 Fund 666 FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE & EN 96854 APR-25; TID 4 PHASE 4 - HINTZ 05/14/2025 6,782.88 414-00-61000  Professional Services

TID #4 Fund 666 FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE & EN 96883 APR-25; ADAMS RD WATER MAI 05/14/2025 26,478.40 414-00-61000  Professional Services

TID #4 Fund 666 FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE & EN 96886 APR-25; ADAMS RD ELEVATED  05/14/2026 9,180.49 414-00-61000  Professional Services

General Fund 666 FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE & EN 96889 APR-25; PRAIRIE PATHWAYS P 05/14/2025 25,168.00 100-23163-088  Prairie Pathways V

TID #4 Fund 666 FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE & EN 96894 APR-25; TID 4 CTH V BOOSTER  05/14/2025 4,314.60 414-00-61000  Professional Services

          Total FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE & ENVIRO, LLC: 71,924.37

FRANKSVILLE AUTOMOTIVE LLC

General Fund 679 FRANKSVILLE AUTOMOTIVE LL 17569 #206 OIL CHANGE 05/12/2025 59.74 100-30-63300  Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance

General Fund 679 FRANKSVILLE AUTOMOTIVE LL 17582 #200 TIRE REPAIR 05/13/2025 38.16 100-30-63300  Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance

          Total FRANKSVILLE AUTOMOTIVE LLC: 97.90

FULL CYCLE ENTERPRISES LLC

General Fund 3834 FULL CYCLE ENTERPRISES LL PS-INV122429 TOP SOIL; 12 YDS 05/08/2025 342.00 100-41-64090  Road Maintenance Materials

          Total FULL CYCLE ENTERPRISES LLC: 342.00

GALLS LLC

Donation Fund 693 GALLS LLC 031156506 SHOULDER STRAPS FOR HG 04/25/2025 404.28 250-30-64198  Police - Honor Guard Expenses

General Fund 693 GALLS LLC 031190935 OC SPRAY 04/29/2025 172.48 100-30-64070  Work Supplies

          Total GALLS LLC: 576.76

GREEN TREE CLEANERS

Donation Fund 754 GREEN TREE CLEANERS 1329 SPICZENSKI UNIFORM CLEANI 05/01/2025 29.54 250-30-64198  Police - Honor Guard Expenses

Donation Fund 754 GREEN TREE CLEANERS 1330 MCDONALD UNIFORM CLEANE 05/01/2025 26.40 250-30-64198  Police - Honor Guard Expenses



VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA Payment Approval Report - All Funds - Excluding US Bank Page:     4

Report dates: 1/1/2025-5/23/2025 May 22, 2025  10:07AM

Fund Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total GREEN TREE CLEANERS: 55.94

GUETZKE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

General Fund 767 GUETZKE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 6438 ANNUAL ALARM INSPECTION, T 05/19/2025 484.90 100-43-62100  Contracted Services

          Total GUETZKE & ASSOCIATES, INC.: 484.90

INTOXIMETERS

General Fund 850 INTOXIMETERS 787692 PBT SUPPLIES 05/19/2025 150.00 100-30-64070  Work Supplies

          Total INTOXIMETERS: 150.00

KLEMA FEEDS INC.

General Fund 9329 KLEMA FEEDS INC. 10338 5/8/2025 100LBS OF FERTILIZE 05/08/2025 52.00 100-41-64090  Road Maintenance Materials

          Total KLEMA FEEDS INC.: 52.00

KORTENDICK HARDWARE

General Fund 1096 KORTENDICK HARDWARE 171957 SAFETY SPRAY PAINT USED F 05/16/2025 6.99 100-35-64070  Work Supplies

General Fund 1096 KORTENDICK HARDWARE 171997 LAUNDRY SOAP 05/16/2025 17.99 100-35-64100  Janitorial Supplies

General Fund 1096 KORTENDICK HARDWARE 172000 PESTBLOCK SEALANT; GASSE 05/15/2025 24.27 100-70-64070  Work Supplies

General Fund 1096 KORTENDICK HARDWARE 172019 FEBREEZE, LYSOL, WEEDCLEA 05/16/2025 114.19 100-43-64100  Janitorial Supplies

General Fund 1096 KORTENDICK HARDWARE 172063 TRASH BAGS; LEVER FLUSH 05/19/2025 70.14 100-70-64070  Work Supplies

          Total KORTENDICK HARDWARE: 233.58

KRIETE GROUP

Capital Projects Fund 1098 KRIETE GROUP V103001486 VOLVO TANDEM-AXLE PATROL  05/21/2025 281,385.36 400-41-65040  Equipment-Vehicles

Capital Projects Fund 1098 KRIETE GROUP V103001486 VOLVO TANDEM-AXLE PATROL  05/21/2025 2,000.00 400-41-65040  Equipment-Vehicles

          Total KRIETE GROUP: 283,385.36

MAV HYDRAULICS

General Fund 9278 MAV HYDRAULICS 250176 TRUCK #32 HYD-RAM 05/14/2025 1,943.01 100-41-63300  Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance

          Total MAV HYDRAULICS: 1,943.01

MENARDS RACINE

General Fund 1281 MENARDS RACINE 07048 GARAGE DOOR OPENER FOR  05/14/2025 261.87 100-35-64240  Building Repairs & Maintenance

General Fund 1281 MENARDS RACINE 6337 2025 BUTANE, TEFLON PASTE, GRE 05/13/2025 57.72 100-41-64070  Work Supplies



VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA Payment Approval Report - All Funds - Excluding US Bank Page:     5

Report dates: 1/1/2025-5/23/2025 May 22, 2025  10:07AM

Fund Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total MENARDS RACINE: 319.59

NASSCO, INC.

General Fund 1371 NASSCO, INC. 6553538 NASSCO 45 GAL. CAN BLK LINE 05/07/2025 57.59 100-43-64100  Janitorial Supplies

General Fund 1371 NASSCO, INC. 6553540 45 GAL. BLK CAN LINERS; ANG 05/07/2025 164.78 100-43-64100  Janitorial Supplies

General Fund 1371 NASSCO, INC. 6553738 TIMBERLINE FLOOR SCRUBBE 05/08/2025 175.91 100-43-64100  Janitorial Supplies

          Total NASSCO, INC.: 398.28

ONTECH SYSTEMS, INC

General Fund 1071 ONTECH SYSTEMS, INC 103461 APR-25; MONTHLY DATA CLOU 05/16/2025 1,575.00 100-90-64300  IT Maintenance & Subscriptions

General Fund 1071 ONTECH SYSTEMS, INC 103571 MAY-25; DIRECT IT TICKET SUP 05/16/2025 1,902.87 100-90-64310  IT Contracted Services

General Fund 1071 ONTECH SYSTEMS, INC 103571 MAY-25; DIRECT IT TICKET SUP 05/16/2025 7,106.60 100-30-64310  IT Contracted Services

General Fund 1071 ONTECH SYSTEMS, INC 103571 MAY-25; DIRECT IT TICKET SUP 05/16/2025 38.83 100-35-64310  IT Contracted Services

          Total ONTECH SYSTEMS, INC: 10,623.30

PARK REFUND VENDOR

General Fund 8999 PARK REFUND VENDOR WRSA-90R3D ESCROW REFUND - CRAWFOR 05/11/2025 25.00 100-00-46753  Park and Rec Rental

          Total PARK REFUND VENDOR: 25.00

PAUL CONWAY SHIELDS

General Fund 1466 PAUL CONWAY SHIELDS 0536897 RED HELMET FOR LT. HAGEN 05/14/2025 450.74 100-35-64070  Work Supplies

          Total PAUL CONWAY SHIELDS: 450.74

POTTERS INDUSTRIES, INC.

General Fund 1521 POTTERS INDUSTRIES, INC. 91452922 20,000 LBS PAINT BEADS 05/19/2025 11,280.00 100-41-64090  Road Maintenance Materials

          Total POTTERS INDUSTRIES, INC.: 11,280.00

RACINE COUNTY CLERK

General Fund 1552 RACINE COUNTY CLERK APRIL 2025 4/1/2025 -APRIL SPRING ELECTI 05/20/2025 350.00 100-12-64010  Notifications/Publications

General Fund 1552 RACINE COUNTY CLERK APRIL 2025 4/1/2025 -APRIL SPRING ELECTI 05/20/2025 3,250.00 100-12-62100  Contracted Services

General Fund 1552 RACINE COUNTY CLERK APRIL 2025 4/1/2025 -APRIL SPRING ELECTI 05/20/2025 1,852.64 100-12-64060  Copying & Printing

General Fund 1552 RACINE COUNTY CLERK FEBRUARY 20 2/18/2025 - FEBRUARY SPRING  05/14/2025 350.00 100-12-64010  Notifications/Publications

General Fund 1552 RACINE COUNTY CLERK FEBRUARY 20 2/18/2025 - FEBRUARY SPRING  05/14/2025 3,250.00 100-12-62100  Contracted Services

General Fund 1552 RACINE COUNTY CLERK FEBRUARY 20 2/18/2025 - FEBRUARY SPRING  05/14/2025 194.28 100-12-64060  Copying & Printing

          Total RACINE COUNTY CLERK: 9,246.92



VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA Payment Approval Report - All Funds - Excluding US Bank Page:     6

Report dates: 1/1/2025-5/23/2025 May 22, 2025  10:07AM

Fund Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

RACINE COUNTY TREASURER

General Fund 1561 RACINE COUNTY TREASURER APRIL 2025 APRIL 2025 COURT FINES 05/08/2025 5,504.73 100-00-45110  Muni Court Fines

          Total RACINE COUNTY TREASURER: 5,504.73

RDS TRUCK SERVICE INC.

General Fund 1603 RDS TRUCK SERVICE INC. 00057425 EXHAUST PARTS, PIPE, CLAMP,  05/05/2025 1,017.05 100-41-63300  Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance

General Fund 1603 RDS TRUCK SERVICE INC. 00057447 LIP FLANGE TRUCK #40 05/08/2025 90.96 100-41-63300  Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance

          Total RDS TRUCK SERVICE INC.: 1,108.01

SCHNABEL PRINTING AND INVITATION CENTER

General Fund 1033 SCHNABEL PRINTING AND INVI 127405 DOOR HANGERS FOR BUREAU 05/14/2025 176.50 100-30-64030  Office Supplies

          Total SCHNABEL PRINTING AND INVITATION CENTER: 176.50

SHRED-IT USA

General Fund 1800 SHRED-IT USA 8010771942 APRIL AND MAY SHREDDING C 05/14/2025 136.16 100-35-62100  Contracted Services

          Total SHRED-IT USA: 136.16

SOUTHPORT ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, LLC

General Fund 1826 SOUTHPORT ENGINEERED SY W61936 PSB - INSTALL HUMIDITY CANN 05/16/2025 1,202.00 100-43-62100  Contracted Services

          Total SOUTHPORT ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, LLC: 1,202.00

SQUARE ONE HEATING & COOLING

General Fund 1840 SQUARE ONE HEATING & COO i46249 VILLAGE HALL SPRING HVAC M 05/16/2025 1,444.66 100-43-64240  Building Repairs & Maintenance

          Total SQUARE ONE HEATING & COOLING: 1,444.66

STATE OF WISCONSIN

General Fund 1861 STATE OF WISCONSIN APRIL 2025 APRIL 2025 COURT FINES 05/08/2025 14,785.70 100-00-45110  Muni Court Fines

          Total STATE OF WISCONSIN: 14,785.70

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

General Fund 2024 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 060-116478 MAY 2025 - INSTALLMENT #5 O 05/12/2025 3,087.50 100-90-62150  Assessment Services

General Fund 2024 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 060-116479 MAY 2025 - INSTALLMENT #4 O 05/12/2025 7,275.00 100-90-62150  Assessment Services

          Total TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.: 10,362.50



VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA Payment Approval Report - All Funds - Excluding US Bank Page:     7

Report dates: 1/1/2025-5/23/2025 May 22, 2025  10:07AM

Fund Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

General Fund 2035 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 1470088358 MAY-25; COVERALLS & RAGS 05/14/2025 145.89 100-41-62100  Contracted Services

General Fund 2035 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 1470089446 MAY-25; COVERALLS & RAGS 05/21/2025 145.89 100-41-62100  Contracted Services

          Total UNIFIRST CORPORATION: 291.78

VESTIS

General Fund 2320 VESTIS 6140590495 MAY-25; RUBBER/NYLON MATS  05/14/2025 346.47 100-43-62100  Contracted Services

          Total VESTIS: 346.47

WAUKESHA COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE

General Fund 2106 WAUKESHA COUNTY TECHNIC S0857197 INTRO TO DRONES; D.WELLS 03/26/2025 125.00 100-30-51300  Education/Training/Conferences

General Fund 2106 WAUKESHA COUNTY TECHNIC S0859855 ADDITIONAL CHARGE FOR PAR 04/11/2025 35.57 100-35-51300  Education/Training/Conferences

General Fund 2106 WAUKESHA COUNTY TECHNIC S0859856 INSTRUCTOR DEVELOPMENT T 04/28/2025 860.00 100-30-51300  Education/Training/Conferences

General Fund 2106 WAUKESHA COUNTY TECHNIC S0859856 RECORDS TRAINING COURSE;  04/28/2025 250.00 100-31-51300  Education/Training/Conferences

          Total WAUKESHA COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE: 1,270.57

WCPPA

General Fund 9126 WCPPA 2025-CONF 05 WCPPA CONFERENCE; BUER 05/02/2025 225.00 100-30-51300  Education/Training/Conferences

          Total WCPPA: 225.00

WE ENERGIES - ESSENTIAL SERVICES

Capital Projects Fund 9371 WE ENERGIES - ESSENTIAL SE WR5092030 NEW GAS METER - FD11 05/05/2025 5,680.87 400-35-65030  Equipment

          Total WE ENERGIES - ESSENTIAL SERVICES: 5,680.87

WILLKOMM EXCAVATING & GRADING, INC

Capital Projects Fund 9348 WILLKOMM EXCAVATING & GR 24-019-4 CRAWFORD PARK GRADING P 05/21/2025 82,539.35 400-70-66100  Park Improvements

          Total WILLKOMM EXCAVATING & GRADING, INC: 82,539.35

WISCONSIN ELECTIONS COMMISSION

General Fund 9378 WISCONSIN ELECTIONS COMM FY2025-16 2025 CONFERENCE REGISTRA 05/08/2025 95.00 100-11-51300  Education/Training/Conferences

          Total WISCONSIN ELECTIONS COMMISSION: 95.00

WISCONSIN HUMANE SOCIETY

General Fund 2180 WISCONSIN HUMANE SOCIETY 3276 ANIMAL SHELTER CONTRACT -  05/01/2025 1,510.00 100-90-62500  Animal Control Contract



VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA Payment Approval Report - All Funds - Excluding US Bank Page:     8

Report dates: 1/1/2025-5/23/2025 May 22, 2025  10:07AM

Fund Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

  Total WISCONSIN HUMANE SOCIETY: 1,510.00

  Grand Totals:  628,278.66



MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:  May 27, 2025 
 
To:  Village Board 
 
From:  Jennifer Bass 
  Village Clerk/Treasurer 
 
Re: St. Rita’s Festival License Approval 
   
 
St. Rita’s Parish has submitted an application for their annual festival, 4 Saints 
Family Festival, which will be held from June 13, 2025 through June 15, 2025. 
Along with the Festival License application, they have applied for a Temporary 
Class B beer and wine license, an Amplifying Device Permit, an Electrical Permit, 
and a Tent Permit.  
 
All required documentation, including a security plan, list of vendors, site map, 
copy of contract with a licensed amusement company for carnival rides, Hold 
Harmless Agreement, and Certificate of Insurance have been submitted along with 
the Festival Application. The electrical and amplifying device permits have been 
approved by the Building Department and Police Department respectively, and an 
inspection has been scheduled with the Fire Department for their tent permit. The 
only document not submitted as of 5/21/2025 is the Appointment of Agent for the 
Temporary Class B license, but they are aware and have promised to turn that in as 
soon as possible. 
 
The Clerk’s office recommends approval of this license.  
  
 
























	Agenda
	Minutes
	6A - 2025-043 - Visit Racine Contract
	6B - 2025-044 Payne & Dolan Permit
	6C - 2025-045 - BSO 4005 Quick Dr
	6D - 2025-046 - BSO 6922 Nicholson Rd
	6E - 2025-047 - Final Condo Plat StorageShopUSA
	6F - 2025-048 - Temporary Use Permit- 5111 Douglas Ave
	7A - AP Check List
	7B - St Rita's Festival License



